


















 G.N. RICHARDSON  & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 Engineering and Geological Services 
 

- 1 - 

 
 
July 27, 2006 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
TO THE 

CONTRACT DOCUMETNS 
FOR 

JOHNSTON COUNTY C & D LANDFILL – AREA 2 – CELL 1 
 

ISSUNED FOR BIDS: JULY 2006 
 
To All Plan Holders: 
 
The following revisions, additions, and clarifications are hereby made part of the Contract Documents for 
the above referenced project and shall be taken into account in the preparation of all Bids and the 
execution of all Work.  Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of the Addendum in the appropriate space on 
the Proposal Form.  Failure to do so may result in your Bid being considered non-responsive. 
 
I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following questions (in italics) have been received by GNRA.  GNRA’s response follows each 
question as indicated.   
 
 

Q: The Advertisement for Bids states that the Owner will receive bids until “10:00 a.m., local 
prevailing time on Tuesday August 1, 2006.”  As this project will bid on a Tuesday and our 
intention is to submit our bid via overnight courier, it would be difficult for the courier to 
guarantee delivery by the prescribed time on the bid date.  Our other option would be to send the 
proposal package out on Friday July 28, 2006.  This option, however, would restrict us from 
including any last minute quotes or considerations into our bid proposal.  In the interest of 
providing the best and most complete bid proposal possible, would it be possible for the Owner to 
change the bid time from the morning to the afternoon on August 1st?  This would allow us the 
time needed to properly prepare the bid package and still have confidence that it would arrive 
prior to the bid time if sent via overnight on Monday July 31, 2006.    

 
A: Bids may be received until 2:00 p.m., local prevailing time on Tuesday, August 1, 2006. 

  
Q: Specification Section 02222 Excavation, Part D. Construction, Item 14. Over excavation and 

Backfill defines the procedure for removal and replacement of unsuitable materials.  
Furthermore, the bid schedule lists a pay item for this work per cubic yard.  At the pre-bid 
meeting, there was discussion about removal and replacement of unsuitable and waste excavation 
being paid for under the same item.  As the work for each will be entirely different (with the waste 
needing to be weighed and delivered to the active area whereas the unsuitable material would 
simply be delivered to the borrow area), would the Owner consider a separate bid item for waste 
excavation so as not to convolute the bid item for over excavation and backfill? 
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A: Impact with waste is anticipated to be minimal.  Therefore, a separate bid item will not be 
considered. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02222 Excavation, Part D. Construction, Item 14. Overexcavation and 

Backfill stipulates that “No additional payment will be made for such excavation and backfill 1 
foot or less than the finished subgrade.”  Is this statement intended to mean that no payment will 
be made for the first 1 foot of overexcavation and backfill regardless of depth or is the statement 
only intended to mean that no payment will be made for superficial subgrade repairs of less than 
1 foot? 

 
A: The 1 foot is considered superficial. 

 
Q: Base Bid Schedule, Item 4.1 Aggregate Surfacing includes earthwork per its description on the 

bid schedule, is it correct to assume that the estimated earthwork quantities required to construct 
the access road have not been included in the excavation and embankment bid items, or does this 
description merely reflect the prepared subgrade as detail 1/R1 indicates? 

 
A: Quantities were determined from the subgrade grading plan and represent final grading conditions 

in this case.  Therefore, the top of aggregate surfacing is assumed in this calculation.   
 
Q: The Base Bid Schedule, Item 4.2 Access Ramp is listed as a lump sum item.  Drawing No. S4 

indicates that the ramp is to be 30’ wide.  Does this mean that the aggregate surfacing of the 
access ramp (from start to end, including the ditch crossing) shall be 30’ wide?  Additionally, the 
length of the access ramp does not appear on the drawing or on detail 2/R1.  Please stipulate the 
length of the access ramp.  Is detail 2/R1 correct in showing the access ramp aggregate being 
placed directly on top of the geosynthetic rain cover at the edge of the cell?  Finally, is general 
structural fill acceptable as fill for the access ramp ditch crossing/18” RCP backfill? 

 
a. Will the access ramp mentioned above need to be installed after the cell has been 

certified by the state? 
 

A: The access ramp is shown in the Protective Cover Grading Plan whereby the length should be 
considered.  In this location, geosynthetic rain cover is not shown.  Therefore, will not be located 
below the access ramp.  Yes, general structural fill is to be used in the access ramp. 

 
Q: Will Base Bid Schedule, Item 8.15 18” Diam. RCP (Class III) (Access Ramp) require end 

treatments or rip rap at the inlet outlet of the pipe for erosion control purposes? 
 
A: No. 

 
Q: Will the requirements for Base Bid Schedule, Item 5.1 1.0-foot (min.) Structural Fill Layer be as 

shown in Specification Section 02223 Embankment (as “Structural Fill” does not appear in the 
technical specifications)?  Additionally, is there a maximum particle size requirement for the 
structural fill?  Would the maximum particle size mean screening or processing of the materials 
found in the borrow area? 
It is our understanding that Item 5.1 will be performed if the GCL is used as opposed to Alternate 
A; Compacted Soil Liner.  If the GCL is used in the project, and the structural fill underneath is 
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essentially the same as the cell subsurface, would it not be possible to eliminate Item 5.1 
altogether?  It appears that, with the exception of maintaining the same grades in the cell, 
nothing is gained by placing the 1’ of structural fill.  It is likely that the GCL option without the 
1’ of structural fill would be less expensive than the Compacted Soil Liner and would also result 
in an extra 1’ of airspace gained in the cell. 

 
A: Particle size is not considered to be an issue in construction for this project as most of the soils 

are generally consistently sandy with little or no large fractional material.  Therefore, screening is 
not anticipated for the purposes of particle size.   

 
The difference in the alternates is in the four (4) foot separation from groundwater required by 
NCDENR.  In the absence of the compacted soil liner, the one (1) foot of structural fill is to 
maintain this separation from the geosynthetic components. 

 
Q: Note 1 at the footer of the Base Bid Schedule states that “Areas and lengths are based on 

horizontally projected areas and lengths.”  Does this mean that the Engineer’s estimated 
quantities listed for the work do not include slope?  If so, does that apply to all piping quantities 
as well as the geosynthetics quantities? 

 
A: Yes and Yes. 
 
Q: Specification Section 01010 Summary of Work, Part D. Construction Permits, Easements, and 

Encroachments, Item 2 lists the requirement for the Contractor to obtain any necessary permits.  
Please list any permit requirements for this project. 

 
A: All permits have been obtained for the construction.  The only permit of consideration may be for 

electric. 
 
Q: Specification Section 01010 Summary of Work, Part E. Time of Work, Item 1. lists the 

requirement of the Contractor to pay for “all costs incurred by the Owner for additional 
Engineering or landfill site staff required to be present during non-landfill hours.”  As normal 
hours have been established as 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, does this apply 
only to hours worked beyond these specified times?  In other words, will the basic work week be 
the 72 hours that this adds up to for the purposes of the CQA representative, etc.? 

 
A: Yes and Yes. 

 
Q: Specification Section 01010 Summary of Work, Part G. Coordination, Item 6. Groundwater 

Monitoring Wells states that the “The Contractor shall protect these new monitoring wells as if 
they existed prior to [start of work].”  Will any of these wells be located directly within the limits 
of construction?  If, so can the locations be provided for the purpose of Bidders’ consideration? 

 
A: Yes, there will be wells located in the construction limits.  An updated drawing has been provided 

in this addendum to show all wells within the construction limits, wells that will be abandoned, 
and wells that will remain (and will require protection). 
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Q: Specification Section 01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls, Part H. Contractor’s Field 
Office – Is there a designated location on the landfill site for field office setup?  If so, is a power 
and/or phone service available at this location?  

 
A: Previous contractors have set up their construction offices near the landfill office.  At this 

location both power and telephone is available. 
 

Q: At the pre-bid meeting, it was discussed that material from clearing operations within the limits 
of work would be hauled and placed in a corner of Borrow Area E.  Is it possible at this time to 
identify which corner of Borrow Area E that the material will be placed in?  Also, many small 
pine trees were observed in the area of the Sediment Basin 6 work.  Will these trees be placed in 
Borrow Area E as well or would they need to be weighed and hauled to the yard waste area in 
the same manner as the trees cleared from any Borrow Area E expansion would?  Finally, is the 
material simply to be dumped or must the Contractor push the debris into a stockpile?  Please 
state any specific erosion control measures required in either case. 

 
A: Waste materials shall be placed in the corner of the borrow area just beyond the point of entry of 

the haul road (southwest corner).  All woody vegetation must be weighed and taken to the yard 
waste area.  Housekeeping in this area should be consistent with the existing yard waste 
operations.  All activity in the borrow area is covered under an erosion and control permit and do 
not require any specific activity. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02240 Geotextiles, Table 1 does not list a MARV for the Mass per Unit 

Area.  To enable the Manufacturer to select a material, please provide a MARV for the Mass per 
Unit Area in oz/yd2. 

 
A: The geotextile proposed will be used in roads and for filtering in the collection system which 

does not require thickness limitations.  However, these materials are typically on the order of 6 
oz/sy. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02250 Soil Liner, Part D. Construction, Item 6(h.) Placement and 

Compaction, states that “The Soil Liner surfaces to be lined with geosynthetics shall be free of 
stones larger than ½ inch in size…”  Will the soil liner material require screening in order to 
achieve the ½” maximum particle size specified? 

 
A: No. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02614 High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Pipe, Part D Construction, Item 

3b Final Flushing states that the Contractor shall flush all leachate collection piping and that 
any sediment remaining at collection points shall be removed and disposed of as directed by the 
Engineer.  In terms of utilizing the on-site re-use water for leachate collection pipe flushing, will 
the water be considered contaminated once the flushing is competed?  If so, will the Contractor 
be allowed to dispose of the flushing water in the on-site leachate collection system?  

 
A: Clean potable water shall be used for flushing. 
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Q: For Specification Section 02710 Drainage Aggregate (Leachate Management), Part B Materials, 
Item 1 Coarse Aggregate, will granite be allowed for both the 57 stone and the 78 stone? 

 
A: Yes. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02776 GCL, Part A Description, Item 8b Warranties states that the 

Contractor is to provide a five (5) year workmanship warranty on the installation of the GCL.  In 
accordance with accepted industry standards, would a one (1) year warranty be accepted? 

 
A: No. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02778 LLDPE Geomembrane does not provide a table of minimum values 

as required for the geomembrane.  Please provide this information. 
 
A: GRI GM13 properties shall be used. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02778 LLDPE Geomembrane, Part A Description, Item 8b Warranties 

states that the Contractor is to provide a five (5) year workmanship warranty on the installation 
of the Geomembrane.  In accordance with accepted industry standards, would a one (1) year 
warranty be accepted? 

 
A: No. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02778 LLDPE Geomembrane, Tables 1&2, discuss the interface friction 

angle testing requirements of the Contractor.  Interface friction testing is a “performance” test 
and not an “index” test by which geomembrane is specified.  The actual coefficient of friction can 
only be established after the actual interface friction testing has been performed using the site 
specific variables, such as soil, normal loads, rate of strain, etc.  For comparison purposes, 
please provide the interface friction angle test results from the design phase of project in order to 
determine which materials may meet the project requirements.  Please provide specific products 
that have been approved for use on the project.  Please provide the required asperity height of 
the textured geomembrane for this project.   

 
A: Yes, the performance of the geosynthetic combination proposed is what is considered.  The 

values provided in Table 1 were used during design and are considered as a guide for 
construction.  It is noted that asperity height has been shown to be limited in its true measure of 
interface friction.  However, it has been our experience that asperity heights of 20 mils generally 
indicate acceptable performance in comparison to the minimum value of 10 presented in GRI 
GM13. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02782 Geosynthetic Rain Cover, Part D. Construction, Item 2. Subgrade 

Preparation stipulates a ½” maximum particle size in the subgrade (which would be the 
protective cover material) for the rain cover.  The maximum particle size listed in Specification 
Section 02256 Protective Cover, Part B. Materials, Item 1(c.), however, is 3 inches.  Please 
advice. 
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A: Particle size is not considered to be an issue on this project.  However, if large particles are 
encountered the surface would be required to be hand picked. 

 
Q: Specification Section 02930 Revegetation, Part A. Description, Item 3. Warranty indicates that 

the Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance of the vegetation for a period of one 
year.  One year is a very long duration for maintenance of vegetation.  Is it possible to revise this 
specification to a shorter period of ninety (90) days?  Typically, the Contractor can ensure 
permanent vegetation in this shorter timeframe and save the Owner money by not pricing the 
possibility of call backs for the one year period into the bid. 

 
A: No. 

 
Q: Drawing No. LM3 Leachate Management System Details (Sheet 3 of 3) shows square precast 

concrete boxes for the valve boxes detailed on this page.  In an effort to reduce cost to the Owner, 
would it be acceptable for the Contractor to use round precast concrete boxes in lieu of the 
square boxes? 

 
A: Round manholes would be acceptable providing access and working clearances are not 

compromised. 
 

Q: Detail 3/L1 entitled “Anchor Trench” shows the liner edge markers that are to be placed on 100’ 
centers and at break points.  Which bid item would it be appropriate to include the cost of these 
markers with? 

 
A: The contractor may choose to place this cost in any of the bid items.  However, we would suggest 

placing it with the geomembrane. 
 
Q: Detail 3/L1 also shows compacted soil liner in the anchor trench backfill.  Does this mean that 

clay material is to be used for backfilling the anchor trench?  If so, please provide any additional 
specifications that may apply to the backfilling of the anchor trench. 

 
A: Yes and would be required to meet the requirements of the compacted soil liner. 

 
Q: Detail 1/L2 entitled “Cell 1 – Cell 2 Liner Termination” details the plywood that is to be 

provided and installed by the Contractor for protection of the geosynthetics termination.  Which 
bid item would it be appropriate to include the cost of the plywood with? 

 
A: The contractor may choose to place this cost in any of the bid items.  However, we would suggest 

placing it with the geomembrane. 
 

Q: Detail 4 entitled “Air and Vacuum Valve Assembly” on Drawing No. LM3 Leachate Management 
System Details (Sheet 3 of 3) specifies a Crispin Model AL10/M5 air and vacuum valve.  This 
valve has different orifice diameter options to choose from depending on the operating pressure.  
In an effort to assist the Contractor in allowing for the manufacturer recommended size orifice, 
please provide the maximum operating pressure of the forcemain system. 

 
A: 1 inch with the operating pressure of 75 psi. 
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END OF ADDENDUM 
 

 
Submitted by, 
G.N.Richardson & Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stacey A. Smith, P.E. 
President, Senior Engineer 
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